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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome, again,

          3  to another hearing of the Public Safety Committee.

          4  Today we're going to consider a very important

          5  topic: The NYPD handling of rape cases, with

          6  particular focus on the recent increase in the

          7  amount of reported rapes. Out of all violent crimes

          8  in the City, only one is on the rise, and it's rape.

          9  It's up about 7.1 percent. In real numbers that

         10  comes to over 1,700 a year, I believe the number is

         11  1776, and in one week in early November, for

         12  example's sake, that's 49 rapes in one week.

         13  Obviously, one rape is too many, and we would like

         14  to find out from the Police Department the reasons

         15  behind this rise and what the Police Department is

         16  doing about it, and an update on your rape unit that

         17  was recently instituted.

         18                 First we'll have testify the NYPD and

         19  the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner. We'll

         20  explain the process of investigating a rape case

         21  with focus on DNA and how DNA has changed the way

         22  that rape and other sexual assaults are

         23  investigated.

         24                 One of the topics we'll speak about

         25  is the backlog which existed in 1999 of 17,000, I'm
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          2  sorry, rape kits, which had not been analyzed yet.

          3  That being said, current rape kits which are

          4  received by the Office of the Medical Examiner, are

          5  turned around at a higher rate than anywhere else in

          6  the country.

          7                 Hello, Ms. Friel. I didn't notice you

          8  were here. One of my old colleagues from the

          9  Manhattan DA's office.

         10                 The second topic of this hearing will

         11  be expanding the statute of limitations in rape

         12  cases. As a former prosecutor and a former defense

         13  attorney, I understand the reasons behind a statute

         14  of limitations - evidence goes stale over a certain

         15  amount of years. However, with the great strides

         16  made in DNA technology, it is possible to get a

         17  conviction over a much longer period of time. There

         18  are presently some bills in Albany, which are

         19  calling for expanding the statute of limitations,

         20  one or two actually calls for eliminating it. I

         21  believe that the Police Department and the District

         22  Attorneys' offices today will come down and testify

         23  in favor of those bills, and then we will echo that

         24  sentiment if that's the case and then call on Albany

         25  to expand it.
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          2                 DNA evidence, as I said, can be used

          3  to exonerate the innocent, but used to convict the

          4  guilty. And state laws need to be changed to reflect

          5  that new reality.

          6                 Let me introduce some Council members

          7  that have arrived. To my left, Council Member Phil

          8  Reed, and to my right, Councilwoman Melinda Katz.

          9  Next to me is Counsel to the Public Safety

         10  Committee, Ted Baecher.

         11                 Gentlemen, and ladies, thank you for

         12  coming down today. And we have with us Assistant

         13  Chief Joanne Jaffe; Deputy Chief Robert Giannelli;

         14  Robert Shaler, from the Office of the Chief Medical

         15  Examiner; and Sarah Scott, also from the Office of

         16  the Chief Medical Examiner.

         17                 First I believe we'll hear from the

         18  Police Department in whatever order you determine.

         19  Thank you for joining us.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Good

         21  afternoon, Chairman Vallone, members of the Public

         22  Safety Committee, and other esteemed members of the

         23  Council. I am Assistant Chief Joanne Jaffe,

         24  Commanding Officer of the Office of Management

         25  Analysis and Planning.
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          2                 On behalf of the Police Commissioner,

          3  Raymond Kelly, and the New York City Police

          4  Department, I am here to discuss the increase in

          5  reported rapes in the City this year, as well as

          6  report on how the Department is responding to this

          7  upturn.

          8                 Also, here to speak on behalf of the

          9  Police Department is Deputy Chief Robert Giannelli,

         10  Executive Officer of the Detective Bureau.

         11                 At the onset, I would like to address

         12  Resolution Number 525, which calls upon the New York

         13  State Legislature to extend the Statute of

         14  Limitations for prosecution of cases of rape and

         15  sodomy in the first degree.

         16                 The Department wholeheartedly

         17  supports this pro-enforcement resolution. If even in

         18  only one case we could bring one more rapist to

         19  justice, such a change in the law would be

         20  warranted.

         21                 Sex offense investigations and

         22  prosecutions are painstakingly thorough, and many

         23  take time to complete. We do not think criminals

         24  should be rewarded for being able to beat the clock.

         25                 Therefore, I express the full support
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          2  of the New York City Police Department for this

          3  resolution.

          4                 So far this year the City continues

          5  to experience a drop in overall reported crime

          6  throughout all five boroughs. Compared to 2001, the

          7  overall number of crime complaints has dropped five

          8  and a half percent.

          9                 Over the last two years the number of

         10  crime complaints has dropped more than 17 percent,

         11  and over the last nine years, the number of crime

         12  complaints has declined more than 64 percent.

         13                 Every major crime category, category

         14  including rape, has experienced dramatic reductions

         15  over the past decade.

         16                 We are safer in this City than we

         17  have been in a generation. We are very much

         18  concerned, therefore, that preliminary figures

         19  indicate that occurrences of rape have increased

         20  this year. As of November 17th, 2002, there were 100

         21  more rapes reported as compared to the same time

         22  period last year.

         23                 The NYPD recognizes that rape is a

         24  particularly devastating crime that may leave both

         25  psychological and physical scars with the victim.
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          2  From officers on patrol and investigators in the

          3  detective squads, to the executives of the

          4  Department, members of the New York City Police

          5  Department are sensitive to and aware of the

          6  seriousness of the crime of rape. And because we are

          7  here today to discuss the increases in the reports

          8  of rape, our success in employing innovative crime

          9  reduction strategies to combat overall crime in the

         10  City guides our approach to the crime of rape.

         11                 As part of our Compstat analysis

         12  process, we regularly examine the occurrences of

         13  rape, as we do with all major crime. In part, this

         14  analysis helps focus our investigative and crime

         15  prevention strategies. We examine where and when

         16  incidents are taking place, how they are occurring,

         17  that is the method of operation of the perpetrator,

         18  and other relevant facts, such as the relationship

         19  between the perpetrator and the victim.

         20                 Stranger rape, that is, rapes where

         21  no prior relation ship exists between the

         22  perpetrator and the victim, poses a serious concern

         23  from both a public safety and investigative

         24  perspective.

         25                 The very thought of a sexual predator
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          2  suddenly and without warning attacking an

          3  unsuspecting person generates public alarm and

          4  launches an intensive investigation to capture the

          5  person responsible for this crime.

          6                 Incidents of rapes when the victim

          7  knows the perpetrator, such as an acquaintance rape

          8  or domestic rape, may not generate the same level of

          9  alarm to the general public, but they are just as

         10  devastating to the victim as a stranger rape, and we

         11  handle them just as thoroughly.

         12                 For the first ten and one-half months

         13  this year, there were six more reported incidents of

         14  stranger rape, 65 more incidents of acquaintance

         15  rape, and 29 more incidents of domestic rape, as

         16  compared to last year.

         17                 94 percent of this increase in

         18  reported rapes was between individuals known to each

         19  other, possibly indicating a higher level of

         20  confidence and awareness by the victims.

         21                 We also have examined the number of

         22  arrests for rape in 2002, and as of November 17th

         23  the Department has made 30 more arrests for rape as

         24  compared to the same period in 2001.

         25                 These arrests indicate that the
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          2  Police Department has remained vigilant in its

          3  effort to apprehend perpetrators of this horrific

          4  crime.

          5                 But the Department's efforts are

          6  focused on much more than just arrests.

          7                 I would like to take the opportunity

          8  to discuss programs and strategies used by the New

          9  York City Police Department to protect our citizens

         10  and address the crime of rape.

         11                 These include internal training,

         12  crime prevention initiatives, the use of DNA

         13  evidence and a sex offender monitoring program.

         14                 We also participate in the newly

         15  created Mayor's sexual assault task force.

         16                 With regard to training, the NYPD has

         17  a variety of courses to prepare offices for

         18  responding to and investigating rape incidents. At

         19  the recruit level, the Police Academy teaches the

         20  importance of evidence, preservation and collection.

         21  Offices are introduced to the psychological effects

         22  of rape, and how to empathize with the victim.

         23                 When officers are in their field

         24  commands, precincts, PSAs and transit districts,

         25  sexual assaults and sex crimes training is a part of
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          2  their regular in-service training curriculum.

          3                 The Special Victims Liaison unit,

          4  which reports to the Chief of Detectives, provides

          5  detectives, supervisors and executives additional

          6  in-service training. Newly assigned detectives

          7  assigned to the Detective Bureau, and newly promoted

          8  sergeants, supervisors are provided a sex crimes

          9  awareness course as part of their training

         10  curriculum.

         11                 At the executive level, those holding

         12  the rank of Captain and above are offered a sex

         13  crimes enforcement course as part of our executive

         14  development series.

         15                 Additional specialized training

         16  exists for our Borough Evidence Collection Teams and

         17  our Crime Scene Unit.

         18                 Borough Evidence Collection Teams

         19  receive basic DNA evidence preservation training,

         20  while members of the Crime Scene Unit receive five

         21  days of formalized classroom study, emphasizing

         22  identification, recovery and preservation of DNA

         23  evidence.

         24                 In addition, the Crime Scene Unit

         25  receives a five-day sex crimes sex assault training
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          2  course.

          3                 As you can see, training is an

          4  integral component to our enforcement efforts.

          5                 The Department also engages in a

          6  number of community awareness and crime prevention

          7  programs for the citizens that we serve.

          8                 Lectures are offered on sexual

          9  assault prevention and awareness. The Special

         10  Victims Liaison Unit regularly provides lectures to

         11  the public on topics including types of sexual

         12  assault, the reporting process, the emotional

         13  repercussions a victim might experience, common

         14  myths and personal safety tips.

         15                 Furthermore, during the fall semester

         16  of 2002, the Special Victims Liaison Unit initiated

         17  a formal program reaching out to colleges and

         18  universities in our City to offer on-campus lectures

         19  regarding sexual assault prevention.

         20                 For the first ten months of this

         21  year, the unit has conducted 25 percent more

         22  meetings, lectures and seminars to a variety of

         23  organizations and institutions, as compared to the

         24  previous year.

         25                 Currently, the Special Victims
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          2  Liaison Unit is working with our Department's Video

          3  Production Unit to produce a video for distribution

          4  to community groups on sexual assault prevention

          5  awareness, as well as child abduction safety.

          6                 The Office of the Deputy Commissioner

          7  of Community Affairs offers rape-related prevention

          8  training as part of the ASPIRE Program, the After

          9  School Program for Interactive Recreation and

         10  Education.

         11                 The rape prevention component of this

         12  program is called "Teen Dating Violence." This part

         13  of the ASPIRE program focuses on how to stay safe

         14  when involved in social settings and provides

         15  information on identification of emotional, physical

         16  and sexual abuse warning signs.

         17                 The Department's Crime Prevention

         18  section conducts lectures to community groups, as

         19  well as public and private sector employees.

         20                 Lecture topics that focus on rape

         21  awareness and prevention include personal safety for

         22  women and safe guards against sexual assault.

         23                 Crime prevention offices at the

         24  precinct level are also available to conduct

         25  personal safety lectures.
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          2                 And lastly, the Department has

          3  informative pamphlets designed to assist citizens on

          4  how to reduce their risk of sexual assault.

          5                 Even as we continue to stress and

          6  promote prevention and education programs as

          7  critical components in our overall sexual assault

          8  strategy, we are also utilizing and exploring the

          9  latest tools in science and technology.

         10                 Prior to January of 1999, sufficient

         11  resources existed to analyze only sexual assault

         12  evidence kits with known suspects for DNA profiles

         13  at the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner.

         14                 As a result, in early 2000, the NYPD

         15  spearheaded an effort and contracts were awarded to

         16  three forensic laboratories to test and catalogue

         17  17,000 kits, which had not yet been analyzed.

         18                 Currently, over 13,000 of these kits

         19  have been shipped. The remaining 4,000 kits should

         20  be shipped and tested by the summer of 2003.

         21                 Now, separate from this backlog, it

         22  is important to note that since January of '99, all

         23  sexual assaults evidence kits are forwarded directly

         24  to the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner for

         25  prompt analysis. No current backlog exists. Now our
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          2  Department and the Office of the Chief Medical

          3  Examiner are exploring new ways to enhance the use

          4  of DNA as an investigative tool in other crimes.

          5                 The Sex Offender Registration Act, or

          6  Megan's Law, as it is more commonly known, mandates

          7  the State to register and monitor persons convicted

          8  of certain sexual offenses.

          9                 New York State Sex Offender Registry

         10  is administered by the State's Division of Criminal

         11  Justice Services. DCGS is notified of all persons

         12  convicted of specific sex offender crimes, and DCGS

         13  then notifies local law enforcement.

         14                 The NYPD Sexual Offender Monitoring

         15  Unit is responsible for ensuring compliance with the

         16  reporting regulations of Megan's Law.

         17                 When sexual offenders are released

         18  from a correctional facility, or sentenced to

         19  probation or parole, the Sex Offender Monitoring

         20  Unit is our Department's central repository and is

         21  responsible for maintaining information regarding

         22  offenders who reside in New York City.

         23                 Currently the New York State registry

         24  contains almost 15,000 registered sex offenders of

         25  which 3,890 reside in New York City.
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          2                 As mandated by law, perpetrators who

          3  are registered sex offenders are designated in one

          4  of three levels, determined by the level of threat

          5  that they pose to the community.

          6                 Level one indicates the lowest level

          7  of threat, level two indicates a moderate threat,

          8  and level three, the most serious is considered to

          9  have a high probability of reoffending.

         10                 Level one and level two offenders

         11  must register by mail annually with the State

         12  registry.

         13                 More importantly, those designated as

         14  level three offenders must personally visit the

         15  offices of the Sex Offender Monitoring Unit every 90

         16  days to provide verification of their address.

         17                 Failure to comply with this reporting

         18  process or failure to notify local law enforcement

         19  of a change of address subjects any level of

         20  offender to be placed in fugitive status and may

         21  subject them to arrest.

         22                 In addition to initiatives undertaken

         23  by the Police Department, Mayor Bloomberg this past

         24  spring assembled a sexual assault task force in

         25  response to the increase in reported rapes in this
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          2  City.

          3                 The task force is chaired by the

          4  Mayor's Criminal Justice Coordinator's Office and

          5  includes representatives from the Police Department,

          6  the Office to Combat Domestic Violence, all five

          7  District Attorneys' Offices and the Office of the

          8  Chief Medical Examiner.

          9                 Mayor Bloomberg tasked the group to

         10  develop programs and policies designed to prevent

         11  sexual assault and to enhance the apprehension and

         12  prosecution of those who commit sexual assaults.

         13                 To that end, the Sexual Assault Task

         14  Force is exploring several initiatives, including

         15  improved access to DNA information for

         16  investigation, increased training, coordination and

         17  communication between the NYPD and the five District

         18  Attorneys' Offices, and increased vigilance in

         19  enforcing sex offender registry laws.

         20                 The current increase in reported

         21  rapes in the City is a serious concern to the Police

         22  Department.

         23                 We cannot be sure whether the

         24  increase reflects more actual incidents as opposed

         25  to greater reporting.
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          2                 However, we have identified some

          3  possible reasons for the increase.

          4                 These factors may include increased

          5  community awareness, expanded education on rape

          6  prevention, and the greater availability of services

          7  to victims.

          8                 Due in part to the aggressive efforts

          9  of the Police Department, our law enforcement

         10  partners and various rape advocacy groups, victims

         11  know that help is available to them.

         12                 Victims can feel confident that when

         13  they are reporting a sexual offense, they will be

         14  treated with dignity and respect.

         15                 In closing, the NYPD is firmly

         16  committed to preventing and solving cases of sexual

         17  assault.

         18                 We continue to use tools that have

         19  been successful in the past, and will employ new and

         20  innovative technologies as they become available.

         21  Prompt, professional, proactive policing combined

         22  with thorough investigations are the core of our

         23  crime-fighting strategies.

         24                 Rape is a horrendous crime and our

         25  commitment is steadfast.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          3  discuss this issue and both Chief Giannelli and I

          4  will be happy to answer any questions that you may

          5  have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          7                 I notice that the Chief Medical

          8  Examiner's Office is only a page. We'll have that

          9  first before we open up the questions. But first let

         10  me introduce, we've been joined by Councilwoman

         11  Helen Foster, and also the Chair of the Health

         12  Committee, which actually has jurisdiction over the

         13  Medical Examiner's Office, thank you for coming here

         14  today, Christine Quinn.

         15                 So, please, we'll hear from your

         16  office also and then we'll open it up for questions.

         17                 DR. SHALER: I am Dr. Robert Shaler,

         18  and I'm a Director of the Office of Chief Medical

         19  Examiner's DNA Laboratory, and on behalf of the

         20  Chief Medical Examiner Dr. Charles Hirsch, and the

         21  Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, I'm here to

         22  discuss the involvement of DNA, the use of DNA in

         23  criminal investigations and specifically sexual

         24  assault investigations.

         25                 New York City, through the Office of
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          2  Chief Medical Laboratory, has a DNA Laboratory,

          3  which is a part of the National DNA Network which is

          4  called CODIS, and that stands for Combined DNA Index

          5  System.

          6                 This is a hierarchial system of

          7  local, state and national DNA databases that is

          8  operated in conjunction with the FBI.

          9                 New York City contributes the largest

         10  percentage of DNA profiles to the New York State DNA

         11  database. Currently submissions from New York City

         12  comprise 90 percent of the New York State database.

         13  A result of this large number of profiles is New

         14  York State ranks third nationally with respect to

         15  DNA database "hits." For our purposes we use the FBI

         16  definition of a hit, which comes in three forms:

         17  forensic hits, which are case-to-case links;

         18  offender hits, which are matches with DNA from

         19  convicted felons; and investigations aided, which

         20  are the number of cases submitted to the OCME that

         21  were assisted by a CODIS hit.

         22                 Prior to 1996, sexual assault rape

         23  kits were not tested at the OCME. At that time the

         24  OCME was funded to perform DNA testing on homicide,

         25  and on sexual assault cases selected by the District
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          2  Attorneys Offices, and/or in pattern cases selected

          3  by the NYPD.

          4                 In 1999, after the potential DNA was

          5  realized, the OCME was funded to do testing on all

          6  sexual assaults. And the NYPD made a decision to

          7  test approximately 17,000 rape kits that had never

          8  been analyzed, and decided to do this through

          9  private contracting.

         10                 The NYPD's rape kit backlog

         11  elimination program began in October 2000. This

         12  project is not an in-house program of the Office of

         13  the Chief Medical Examiner.

         14                 To assist the City and the NYPD, the

         15  DNA laboratory of the Office of Chief Medical

         16  Examiner had accepted responsibility for

         17  coordinating the DNA testing for the NYPD. The

         18  laboratory's specific responsibilities include their

         19  preparation of dummy kits that serve as a quality

         20  check on the testing process in each contract

         21  laboratory; analyzing the DNA profiles returned from

         22  contract laboratories; uploading CODIS eligible DNA

         23  profiles to the New York State CODIS database; and

         24  maintaining "hit" statistics.

         25                 As of October 2002, 12,630 kits have
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          2  been shipped to the three vendor laboratories,

          3  10,760 of these have been analyzed.

          4                 Of these 10,760 kits analyzed, 4,178

          5  or 38.8 percent were positive for semen. The semen

          6  positive kits have produced 3,062 DNA profiles that

          7  have been uploaded to the State, which were then

          8  uploaded nationally into the DNA FBI's CODIS system.

          9                 These 3,062 profiles have produced

         10  754 matches or "hits" which represents 24.6 percent

         11  of uploaded profiles, or 18 percent of the kits that

         12  are semen positive. The hits are split among the

         13  categories I mentioned previously. An additional 109

         14  hits are pending confirmation, which would bring the

         15  total number of hits to 863, and would change the

         16  percentages to 28.2 percent and 20.7 percent

         17  respectively.

         18                 Once DNA profiles are resident in

         19  either the State DNA databank or nationally at

         20  CODIS, they will continue to produce "hits" as they

         21  are searched against additional convicted offender

         22  profiles, new backlog kits entering the system and

         23  current caseload DNA profiles.

         24                 This concludes my statement and I

         25  will address any questions you might have.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          3                 Council Member Reed needs to leave to

          4  vote on another issue, but would like to make a

          5  statement and ask a question before he leaves and I

          6  believe he will be returning.

          7                 Council Member Reed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chair.

         10                 And I appreciate that we're having

         11  this hearing on this very important topic. I've

         12  served on this Committee now in the last term and so

         13  I remember the issues and that's why I had stopped

         14  to talk to the Chief Medical Examiner briefly, and

         15  I'm delighted that we have put the money in for DNA

         16  labs and what your report is.

         17                 I was reading earlier today the

         18  Committee's report, and I thought that was excellent

         19  about why the numbers were such. I see the Compstat

         20  report, and I'm seeing all the crime is down, and I

         21  think it's important that we do all the things that

         22  we're asking to do and that we also support the

         23  completion of the labs, the Medical Examiner's, my

         24  understanding was that's going to be your central

         25  lab? The police are not looking for their own DNA
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          2  lab, but through the Medical Examiner's Office; am I

          3  wrong or right about that?

          4                 DR. SHALER: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And I certainly

          6  think we need to remain vigilant in this budget

          7  cycle, that we don't lose that money. I wanted to

          8  thank the Committee. I have to go not only to

          9  another Committee, but it's across the street at 250

         10  there. I guess they think I need some exercise

         11  before I sit down for that big meal on Thursday.

         12                 The question that I had, though, in

         13  the testimony that we just had from Assistant Chief

         14  Jaffe, you didn't talk about the age that we're

         15  seeing in here? I mean, I thought it was interesting

         16  that at the end of your testimony you said that you

         17  thought the increase might be due to more reporting,

         18  which I think makes some sense. But is there an age

         19  range in the perpetrators that we could sort of

         20  identify and that we're trying to find out? You said

         21  you're doing team prevention and trying to get the

         22  word out to people, and it seemed to me, and I don't

         23  mean this question to try to stigmatize anybody, but

         24  it seemed to me the last time I heard this similar

         25  sort of testimony, there were one or two precincts
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          2  where we were finding this to be a bigger problem

          3  than others, so could you address those two

          4  questions for me?

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I'm sorry,

          6  first in terms of the age, what we do is, I have

          7  with me an analysis of the age of the victims over

          8  the past two years, I don't have an analysis of the

          9  perpetrators, if that's what you're asking. Was that

         10  what you were asking about the perpetrators?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Yes.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Yes, I don't

         13  have that with me.

         14                 I can talk about the past two years,

         15  what we've seen, the age of the victims is somewhat

         16  consistent, you know, victims under 11 years old is

         17  three to four percent, and the majority of victims,

         18  which are 17 years old or over are both in 2001 and

         19  2002 over 50 percent, 51 percent to 53 percent

         20  respectively. Of course this year has not been

         21  completed so it's just for the first ten and a half

         22  months.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Could we make

         24  sure that information gets to be a part of the

         25  record so we can review that?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And you at some

          4  point can analyze -- I may be off that there's any

          5  relevancy to the age of the perpetrator, but it

          6  seemed to me that there might be, and I guess my

          7  other question is, it's a ghoulish subject, but you

          8  said some percent of 11 year olds, which is

          9  incomprehensible, but is there some point at which

         10  we go from child abuse to rape or is that something

         11  that a perpetrator gets charged with both?

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: The

         13  percentages that I just talked about have to do

         14  specifically with rape. I mean it's a very small

         15  amount, the percentage is three or four percent, but

         16  it's a very small amount that has to do with the

         17  victims.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand

         19  that. And it provoked another question in my mind, I

         20  never heard that statistic in the age of 11. And

         21  Chairman, do you understand what I'm trying to get

         22  at?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: The victim in

         24  that time could fall -- it's obviously, it's a rape

         25  1 crime, but it could fall within a stranger rape,
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          2  an acquaintance rape or a domestic rape.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay. Well,

          4  maybe we'll tease out what my confusion is a little

          5  bit later.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Reed, we

          7  will request that information in writing when the

          8  hearing is over regarding the ages.

          9                 And actually Mr. Reed brings up a

         10  good point. It was going to be my first question

         11  also. We have a statistic here about the rise in

         12  rapes and the number of rapes, but we don't have

         13  statistics, we haven't been provided with them

         14  regarding areas of concern for the Police Department

         15  regarding the increase in rapes and I believe that

         16  was, Mr. Reed, the second part to this question. Any

         17  specific precincts or any specific areas that --

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I could talk

         19  specifically about the boroughs. We could go through

         20  and look at the precincts.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, the other

         22  part of it that I was saying, I was confused, it may

         23  be a new subject, I know it's a small number when

         24  the age was very young, but you hear people being

         25  arrested and charged with child molestation and sex
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          2  abuse of a child, which I presume in some instances

          3  unfortunately means rape, so I didn't know if those

          4  perpetrators were charged with sexual abuse of a

          5  child and rape, or is it really all the same thing?

          6  That's an additional question.

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: They would be

          8  charged with rape and chances are there's a sexual

          9  abuse and/or endangerment to welfare of a child. But

         10  the top charge, the highest charge is the rape 1.

         11                 In terms of, if you just want to look

         12  at patrol boroughs, all the boroughs, except the

         13  Borough of Queens, show increases so far this year.

         14                 So, for example, Manhattan, combining

         15  Manhattan South and Manhattan North, but I can break

         16  it down further, shows an increase of 49 rapes. The

         17  Bronx shows an increase of 25 rapes, Brooklyn shows

         18  an increase of 27 rapes, Queens shows a decrease of

         19  eight rapes, and Staten Island shows an increase of

         20  seven rapes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you. And

         22  I'll pursue this later, and I appreciate it, Mr.

         23  Chair, and I will try to get back as soon as I can.

         24  I will try to be back as soon as I can get from one

         25  side of Broadway to the other. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Chair, if I

          3  could just give my apologies, I have to go next door

          4  to the Planning Subcommittee of Land Use. I have a

          5  district item. But I will be back. I just apologize

          6  to the Medical Examiner.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We appreciate

          8  your coming by. We know you don't have to, as you're

          9  not a member of this Committee, but you're always

         10  welcome.

         11                 You broke it down by boroughs, can

         12  you do anything more specific than that?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: By patrol

         14  borough, instead of geographic borough? Sure.

         15                 Manhattan, like I spoke about it,

         16  shows an increase of 49, in Manhattan South that's

         17  29, and in Manhattan North that's 20. In the Bronx,

         18  it's one patrol borough, so there's an increase of

         19  25. In Brooklyn South there's an increase of one

         20  rape so far this year, and in Brooklyn North there's

         21  an increase of 26. So, the Brooklyn total is 27.

         22                 In Queens South there's an increase

         23  of eight, but in Queens North there's a decrease of

         24  16, so that that leaves Queens with having an

         25  overall decrease in rapes by eight, and in Staten
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          2  Island there's an increase of seven.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you have any

          4  expert opinion as to why that is? In the different

          5  boroughs? Like Queens North would have a reduction,

          6  while everyone else is having an increase? Are there

          7  different programs in different areas, is there any

          8  reason you can subscribe to that?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: We're seeing

         10  increases. I mean, clearly the numbers show we're

         11  seeing increases in reported rapes throughout the

         12  City, except for one patrol borough in Queens. So, I

         13  think the reasons for the increase in rape is

         14  consistent throughout the City.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me address

         16  that then.

         17                 You mentioned, and I thank you for

         18  the specific information that 65 incidents were of

         19  acquaintance rape and 29 were domestic, whereas six

         20  were stranger rapes, that's of the increase in

         21  rapes?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now, six,

         24  obviously as a number doesn't sound like a large

         25  one, but obviously one rape is far too many.
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          2  However, six must be taken in light of the fact that

          3  all other crimes have dropped, and, so, I think it

          4  does represent a large increase, and it takes on

          5  much larger significance in that regard.

          6                 So, with regard first to stranger

          7  rape, is there a reason, is there some reason you

          8  can come up with why that number exists, why that's

          9  the only crime that has increased, before I get to

         10  my next question?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: As I said

         12  initially, if you're asking me specifically about

         13  why do I believe that there's an increase in rapes

         14  in the City? I don't think we could be 100 percent

         15  certain, if it reflects an increase in actual

         16  occurrences or in more victims reporting as a result

         17  of the different things I spoke about earlier -

         18  increased training, increased prevention, more

         19  community awareness, less stigmatization in society.

         20                 In terms of proportions for the City

         21  of rapes, 17 percent of all rapes in the City are

         22  stranger rape. That's what we've seen in 2002, and

         23  it's the same in 2001.

         24                 In addition, 17 percent of the total

         25  number of rapes proportionally are domestic rapes,
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          2  and in terms of acquaintance, 65 percent of all

          3  rapes are in the category of acquaintance rapes.

          4  Those proportions are the same between 2001 and

          5  2002. They have not changed even with the increase

          6  in 100 reported rapes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Chair?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes. Are you

          9  still here?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, you said

         11  there was going to be a vote in a minute.  Your

         12  staff told me not to leave.

         13                 Is the 65 cumulative? Or is it 65 and

         14  17, you were just giving us two percentages.

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: The 65 percent

         16  is like the proportion of -- we have 1,808 rapes,

         17  preliminary so far this year that have been reported

         18  as of November 17th.  Sixty-five percent of them,

         19  based on the information we received, are

         20  acquaintance rapes.

         21                 Seventeen percent of them are

         22  stranger rapes, and 17 percent of them fall into the

         23  category of domestic rapes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: In other words,

         25  if you take the 65 and the 17 from the domestic
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          2  rapes, that's like 80 something percent knew their

          3  perpetrator.

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Exactly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That's what I

          6  was trying to make sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before we move

          8  on, we need to ask your indulgence for one moment.

          9  We have a little bit of housekeeping to do, because

         10  we have five members which represent the quorum of

         11  our nine-member committee. We need to take a vote on

         12  some anti-graffiti bills which were introduced at

         13  our last meeting. It seems a little incongruous to

         14  go from rape to graffiti, but it is part of our

         15  function here, and it is a quality of life crime

         16  which as we know is a threshold crime, a gateway

         17  crime, which leads to more crime.

         18                 We have introduced, since you're

         19  here, you might as well know what we're doing. We

         20  have introduced some bills I personally have which

         21  will increase the penalty for second-time offenders

         22  of both graffiti and stores who sell graffiti tools

         23  to minors, it will now become an A misdemeanor from

         24  a B misdemeanor. And I don't need to tell the

         25  prosecutors what that means, in terms of sentencing
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          2  and fines.

          3                 In addition, we're creating a new law

          4  today which will make it illegal to sell etching

          5  acid to minors, because that's the new tool of

          6  graffiti vandals, and we've introduced those

          7  resolutions, we've had testimony from the Police

          8  Department, which did obviously testify in favor of

          9  those new laws, and we will now open up the floor

         10  for a vote.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm proud to

         13  vote aye on all those measures, both Intros 243 and

         14  286.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Aye on

         23  all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at

         25  five in the affirmative, no negative and no
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          2  abstentions and the vote remains open. Please sign

          3  the reports.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          5                 Before we move over to questions for

          6  the CME and further questions, Melinda Katz has the

          7  floor.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good morning,

          9  and thank you for being here today. I just have a

         10  few questions.

         11                 So, just to tag on what Council

         12  Member Reed was talking about, so if 65 percent of

         13  the rapes are acquaintance rapes, 17 percent are

         14  strange rapes, and 18 percent are domestic partner

         15  rapes?

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Seventeen

         17  percent. Seventeen and 17.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Seventeen and

         19  17. Are domestic rapes considered also unmarried

         20  couples?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Unmarried

         22  couples that live together or could be unmarried

         23  couples that previously lived together.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They don't have

         25  to share a child, like they do under domestic
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          2  violence law?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Within

          4  domestic violence it follows that Family Court act,

          5  and then there's two added ones for the Police

          6  Department in the expanded definition, and that's if

          7  they live together, if two people live together, or

          8  they lived together.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Have lived

         10  together or do live together?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So it's not

         13  coincidence that -- I mean, it seems to make sense

         14  then, if six more reported rapes were from stranger

         15  rapes, 65 are from acquaintance rapes and 29 were

         16  from domestic rape, that seems to mimic your number

         17  as well. The percentages equal out. Basically it

         18  equals out the larger percentage of the acquaintance

         19  rapes.

         20                 Is the way that your prosecute any

         21  different, between stranger rapes, domestic rapes

         22  and acquaintance rapes?

         23                 Is your way of dealing with the

         24  police side of it, as opposed to the DAs' side of it

         25  any different when it comes to the three different
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          2  types of rapes?

          3                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Well, the

          4  Police Department doesn't prosecute, but we arrest.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Your side.

          6                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: We arrest

          7  with the same vigor.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's the exact

          9  same thing?

         10                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Yes, it is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, do you have

         12  any numbers, and maybe this is a question for the

         13  DAs' offices, and I know they're here, on the actual

         14  convictions of any of the three categories?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: We don't have

         16  any numbers on the convictions. On the arrests I can

         17  tell you that over the ten years, through our

         18  efforts in this area, we've increased our arrests

         19  from 40 percent to 69 percent.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And you

         21  attribute that to what?

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: I attribute

         23  that to the programs we've instituted in the last

         24  nine, ten years.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I noticed in the
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          2  testimony, you talked about higher confidence in

          3  awareness, I think especially when it comes to the

          4  acquaintance rape and domestic rape, so I assume you

          5  mean that they're actually just being reported more

          6  now and the women are more confident in reporting

          7  these rapes?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Yes, that's

          9  true.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. I believe

         11  most of my questions are probably for the DAs'

         12  office, and I appreciate your time and your effort

         13  on the matter.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Ms. Jaffe, run

         15  us through the process, I don't believe you did this

         16  in your testimony, of the Police Department

         17  responding to a rape call. At what point do your

         18  specialists get involved? From the beginning, from

         19  the original call, what's the process with the

         20  Police Department?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Okay, I'll run

         22  it through from the Police Officer's side as a first

         23  responder, and then Chief Giannelli can run it

         24  through as a detective representative from the

         25  Detective Bureau side.
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          2                 Initially we'll either get called

          3  from a hospital, if a woman appears at the hospital,

          4  or get called to a residence or to a scene where a

          5  woman has reported being raped. We will preserve

          6  that crime scene immediately. A police officer and

          7  his or her partner will call a supervisor, who would

          8  have to respond immediately. We would ensure that

          9  the victim is taken to the hospital immediately, the

         10  hospital has certain procedures that must be

         11  complied with, and then we would call our experts in

         12  to that crime scene and that would be the Crime

         13  Scene Unit and the Detective Squad of that

         14  respective precinct, and the Special Victims Squad,

         15  who would also respond of that borough.

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: From the

         17  investigative perspective, once a rape occurs the

         18  detectives will be notified, and we will have our

         19  Special Victims Squad respond. And I think the name

         20  represents the way we feel about these cases. This

         21  is a Special Victims Squad, it is made up of

         22  detectives who are selected from within the

         23  Detective Bureau. No detective goes straight to the

         24  Special Victims Squad.  We pick our better

         25  detectives and we transfer them to this squad.
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          2                 Once they will respond, they will

          3  have the Crime Scene Unit respond. We're especially

          4  cognizant of DNA evidence now. It has expanded

          5  tremendously in the last 13 years.

          6                 The victim will be taken to the

          7  hospital most likely. At the hospital we have rape

          8  counselors, at the hospital, and Sergeant Martinez,

          9  who is here from our Special Victims Liaison Unit,

         10  she can expand on that.  But we work closely with

         11  them, so they can not only counsel the victim, they

         12  can also elicit information that we need to conduct

         13  an investigation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's the unit

         15  within the Police Department?

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: No, the

         17  counselors aren't within the Police Department, but

         18  they work closely with our Special Victims Liaison

         19  Unit.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Where are the

         21  counselors coming from?

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Well, they

         23  come from different city agencies and if you would

         24  like a better answer I can get Sergeant Martinez to

         25  expand upon that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Perhaps we could

          3  just get an answer to that question.

          4                 SERGEANT MARTINEZ: Most City

          5  hospitals have rape crisis counselor groups working

          6  at the hospitals 24/7.

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Our Special

          8  Victims Squads, they catch all rapes or attempted

          9  rapes, all sodomies or attempted sodomies, all

         10  sexual abuse in the first degree, and all aggravated

         11  sexual abuse cases.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Who coordinates

         13  that with the District Attorneys Offices?

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Well, we have

         15  meetings with the District Attorneys Office monthly.

         16  Each one of our Special Victim Squads will meet in

         17  each borough monthly and a representative of the

         18  District Attorney's Office will be there.

         19                 The District Attorney's Office will

         20  participate in our training, and if the District

         21  Office arranges training, we will see that our

         22  detectives go to that training.

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Just to add to

         24  that, in terms of the day-to-day coordination. You

         25  have Special Victim Squads in every patrol borough,
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          2  in the detective boroughs, and they report, they

          3  have a Special Victims Lieutenant running the squad,

          4  and they report to a major case crime captain, who

          5  oversees probably three or four different units

          6  within that respective borough's detective bureau.

          7                 On top of them you have a deputy

          8  chief who runs that borough's detective bureau. So,

          9  between the major case captain and the Deputy Chief

         10  who is running that borough, the detective squad

         11  overseeing and supervising them, they work in

         12  coordination with the District Attorney's Office on

         13  a day-to-day basis.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I have some

         15  familiarity with this, obviously, but, you know, for

         16  the benefit of others, you make it sound like there

         17  are many, many people involved with this process,

         18  and I'm sure there are, but obviously they're not

         19  all involved with the victim, which would not be the

         20  proper way to handle things, I don't believe.

         21                 So, can you explain who is involved

         22  with the victim and who would oversee, you know,

         23  make sure that that victim feels comfortable and

         24  does not have to repeat her story to 17 people; who

         25  is responsible for that responsibility?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: The Special

          3  Victims detective assigned to the Special Victims

          4  Squads.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just very

          6  quickly.

          7                 If it's a stranger rape, or even an

          8  acquaintance rape, I can sort of understand some of

          9  the process, in fact, like freezing the scene of the

         10  crime and the DNA, and, of course, you know, just

         11  working on that level about evidence.

         12                 But when it's domestic rape, it would

         13  seem to me to be a different type of arrest, or a

         14  different type of evidence gathering.

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Well, I think

         16  when it's a domestic rape, we do deal with the

         17  domestic violence officers in the precinct.

         18                 Obviously, when it's not a stranger,

         19  DNA is not as important as in a stranger rape, so

         20  we'll look for other investigative measures.

         21                 For example, if someone was raped in

         22  a domestic situation or by an acquaintance, perhaps

         23  we'll use a tactic of making a return phone call.

         24                 For example, if the victim is

         25  assaulted, she may come in and the Special Victims
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          2  Squad would have her call the person who she says

          3  assaulted her, and may say something - Jonny, why

          4  did you do that? Why did you force yourself on me?

          5                 So, there are other techniques that

          6  we use in domestic and acquaintance cases.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: My question was

          8  really what happened -- if you have an acquaintance

          9  rape or a stranger rape, I mean the swiftness of

         10  getting the guy or getting the victim to safety

         11  might not be as urgent; so I guess my question is,

         12  as you're gathering evidence, what actually happens

         13  in domestic rape?

         14                 I mean, does the accused man get

         15  pulled right out of his house, or do you arrest him

         16  immediately? Or is there some sort of way to

         17  separate the two?

         18                 And obviously, these issues wouldn't

         19  come up as much if it were an acquaintance or

         20  stranger rape, so that's really where I'm going.

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: I think when

         22  we get an allegation of a sexual offense in a

         23  domestic or acquaintance situation, you want to make

         24  sure that it's not from a vindictive victim, so we

         25  do take additional steps.
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          2                 There may be some indication of force

          3  or violence, or there may be a history, or perhaps

          4  we'll do this type of phone call. So, there are

          5  other steps that we need to use, yes.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I think

          7  clearly, though, we establish a crime in all rape

          8  cases, the crime scene would respond, and we conduct

          9  preliminary steps to commence an investigation, and

         10  then some of these things are identified as you

         11  continue an investigation, they get flushed out over

         12  time where the information might not be available

         13  initially.

         14                 But a crime scene is immediately

         15  established, the detectives respond and crime scene

         16  responds to all reports of rape, rape 1.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: When you say a

         18  vindictive victim, can you describe to me what you

         19  mean and how often do you see where you're dealing

         20  with a vindictive victim?

         21                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Well, I don't

         22  have the stats on how often, but I can give you an

         23  example.

         24                 Sometimes in child custody cases

         25  we'll see it. The two adults will be arguing over
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          2  custody of a child, one will accuse the other of

          3  some type of perverted behavior, therefore, when

          4  they go to trial or go to court over who is going to

          5  retain custody of the child, they'll have an arguing

          6  point for them to maintain custody of that child.

          7                 There's one other thing, too, that

          8  shows that this does happen.

          9                 Approximately ten percent of all rape

         10  complaints result in recants or the investigation

         11  shows it to be unfounded.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Are these with

         13  acquaintance rapes or domestic rapes or just rapes

         14  across the board?

         15                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Rapes across

         16  the board.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before I move on

         19  to the Medical Examiner, you touched on this, but

         20  you said there are counselors at the hospitals,

         21  obviously there are many private counseling groups,

         22  I was just wondering how all of this is coordinated

         23  with the victim?

         24                 Do you reach out to the hospital and

         25  they provide the counseling and then you're out of
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          2  the picture? Or do the other groups contact you? How

          3  is the counseling and the assistance provided to the

          4  victim?

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: The hospitals

          6  have contracts with people, and they'll call, and

          7  we're mandated in our Patrol Guide to notify the

          8  victim of different counseling centers in their

          9  areas. Also, in Brooklyn, and presently to go on

         10  line in Queens, we have centers, child advocacy

         11  centers, where we actually have police officers

         12  stationed at those centers. So, it is a joint

         13  effort. We try to do it as a joint effort.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And maybe

         15  because of yesterday's hearing, I'm especially

         16  concerned about funding. Do you feel you're

         17  adequately staffed at this point with your Special

         18  Victims Unit and with the resources you need, to

         19  respond to this increase in rapes?

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Yes. Again,

         21  the title of the squad, the Special Victims Squad, I

         22  think that emphasizes the feeling we have towards

         23  these squads. We're down approximately seven percent

         24  in the Detective Bureau in investigators. We are up

         25  six percent in the number of personnel assigned to
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          2  the Special Victims Squads. We are down

          3  approximately 17 percent in supervisors in the

          4  Detective Bureau; however, our Special Victims

          5  Squads had no decrease in the number of supervisors.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I'd like to

          7  just, again, reiterating the Department's

          8  commitment, and obviously the Police Commissioner's

          9  commitment to this serious and horrendous offense.

         10  The Police Department overall this year compared to

         11  last year is down about four and a half percent in

         12  terms of overall staffing of uniformed personnel.

         13  The Detective Bureau, as Chief Giannelli just said,

         14  the Detective Bureau is down about seven percent.

         15  Narcotics as a whole is down 16 percent. The Warrant

         16  Division is down nine percent. I could really go on

         17  and on, I brought a couple of examples. Special

         18  Victims is up six percent. That's a small number.

         19  We're not sitting here saying they're up six

         20  percent, it's hundreds of people. But the

         21  commitment, the resolve is there, to have dedicated,

         22  committed personnel assigned to these Special Victim

         23  Squads, and to ensure that their staffing doesn't go

         24  below what is needed.

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Mr. Vallone,
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          2  if I could just add one other thing to that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes.

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF GIANNELLI: Detectives

          5  look at their activity, too, by catching cases. A

          6  regular detective in a Detective Squad, will catch

          7  approximately 130 cases the year. A detective in our

          8  Robbery Squad will catch 90 cases a year. A

          9  detective in our Special Victims Squad catches 60

         10  cases a year.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, I can't

         12  agree more with Ray Kelly's decision to make sure

         13  that your group not only did not lose members but

         14  increased its staff. There can't be more important

         15  function that the Police Department has than to

         16  protect our women from this heinous crime,

         17  especially as the father of two daughters. But I

         18  also appreciate your testimony regarding the overall

         19  loss of personnel to the Police Department. I think

         20  you know that no one has fought harder than the

         21  Public Safety Committee here to make sure that the

         22  funding cuts do not come from the Police Department

         23  because we understand how important a safe city is,

         24  and without you and the work you do, without a safe

         25  city we can't have good schools or a thriving
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          2  economy or arts or senior centers or anything like

          3  that, and you have some huge supporters on this

          4  Committee, and I will work with you regarding those

          5  other numbers on another date. Maybe tomorrow, or as

          6  soon as we can.

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: We thank you

          8  for that support.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You know, in

         10  March I think it was, the Mayor responded to this

         11  increase in rapes by establishing -- what did he

         12  call it? A rape task force, which you briefly

         13  mentioned in your testimony.

         14                 You said that you were studying some

         15  initiatives, but we haven't heard much about that

         16  task force and I'd like an update as to what it's

         17  doing and what initiatives it's actually going to

         18  implement.

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Okay. I happen

         20  to be one member on the task force representing the

         21  Police Department, as is some of the people in

         22  attendance here today.

         23                 Again, we're working in conjunction

         24  with the Criminal Justice Coordinator's Office. The

         25  Special Counsel runs, hosts or chairs the meetings.
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          2  A Police Department representative, domestic

          3  violence representative from the Office of Domestic

          4  Violence, all five District Attorneys Offices have

          5  the Sex Crimes Bureau Chiefs represented there, and

          6  the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner.

          7                 We're working on basically four

          8  different major issues. One is the creation of a

          9  statewide DNA tracking system, and I'm sure Dr.

         10  Shaler could speak more about that. Something that

         11  is extremely necessary in this day and age with

         12  technology the way it is, and we see the increase in

         13  the amount of DNA hits. It's just critical that we

         14  get this up and running.

         15                 The second issue has to do with

         16  training. Training between us and the District

         17  Attorney's office. We're working on a curriculum.

         18  The way it has worked in the past is every District

         19  Attorney's Office conducts training with special

         20  victim squads and detective squads for that

         21  respective borough, and for the first time the five

         22  District Attorneys' Offices have put together a

         23  major training, a curriculum that I just got to see

         24  a couple of days ago, the outline, and it looks

         25  absolutely wonderful, Lisa, I've got to tell you. A
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          2  curriculum, and they are going to in coordination

          3  give training to our special victim squads and

          4  representatives from the Detective Bureau. So it's

          5  consistent and unified throughout this City and it's

          6  different when we go from borough to borough or

          7  bureau to bureau.

          8                 In addition, one of the issues we're

          9  working on is just increased coordination and

         10  communication between the Police Department, ME's

         11  office and the District Attorney's Office, and then

         12  there are issues related to the Sex Offender

         13  Monitoring Unit, and how we could target and

         14  prioritize people who are registered under the Sex

         15  Offender Monitoring Unit in the registry laws, what

         16  we could do in the Police Department and the

         17  District Attorney's Office proactively to ensure

         18  these people are compliant, and to let them know

         19  that we're watching them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That sounds

         21  great to me, too. But strangely enough, both my

         22  counsel and Melinda Katz both leaned into me and

         23  said the same thing that I had been thinking from

         24  the beginning. We originally asked what your opinion

         25  was and why this went up, and I understand your
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          2  position, but their question was the same thing, did

          3  we ever get an answer to that question. And

          4  obviously in this task force, that must be a

          5  question you're studying because you need to respond

          6  appropriately to the reasons why you think this is

          7  going up. So, what have your determinations been as

          8  to why this rape is the only crime that's going up?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I do believe

         10  that I answered that and we cannot be 100 percent

         11  certain, and I'm not going to sit here and say, I,

         12  or the Police Department, is 100 percent certain as

         13  to the reason, whether it has to do with an increase

         14  in number of incidents, or an increase in the

         15  reporting process, and the availability of

         16  counseling. Regardless of which it is, we are taking

         17  the increase very, very seriously and the Mayor in

         18  the spring of 2002 created this task force to look

         19  at the increase in rapes and to see what policy

         20  procedure strategies we could put together, together

         21  collectively as a group, to address this increase,

         22  and, in general, the crime of rape, and that is what

         23  we have done.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Have any of

         25  those strategies been implemented yet?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Yes. For

          3  example, in our sex -- there's a couple of them. I

          4  mean, the training is one I talked about, the

          5  curriculum, the first training that we're going to

          6  be giving to about 25 members of the Police

          7  Department with representatives from all District

          8  Attorneys Offices, is this Monday, December 2nd,

          9  hosted by Lisa Friel, Manhattan District Attorney's

         10  Office. We're going to be continuing these

         11  throughout all the boroughs, involving all special

         12  victims squads, and hopefully getting through all

         13  the detective squads with time.

         14                 In addition to that, with our Sex

         15  Offender Monitoring Unit, one of the things we're

         16  doing in the Police Department is now proactively

         17  going out and doing home visits with level three

         18  predators that are assigned to the sex offender

         19  registry that fall within that. We had never done

         20  that before.

         21                 Their responsibility is to come to

         22  see us at our office at the Sex Offender Monitoring

         23  Unit every 90 days and verify their address. There

         24  are certain checks we have to do, there is certain

         25  information we have to get, we have to maintain
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          2  lists, we have to coordinate with the Patrol Borough

          3  Commanders, we have to disseminate information. But

          4  for the first time, we are visiting some of these

          5  people and going out and verifying and ensuring that

          6  they're there and are saying hello.

          7                 For example, last year we did no

          8  proactive visits, this year so far we've done 91. On

          9  Halloween, a day where you would assume there is

         10  many, many children knocking on anonymous people's

         11  doors, we went out, the Sex Offender Monitoring

         12  Unit, under Sergeant Brick, went out and knocked on

         13  Level 3 doors and said to them, hi, we're just here

         14  to visit you. Let them know that we're present, that

         15  we're around.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I don't mean to

         17  be argumentative. I'm trying to just find -- it

         18  would seem to me that if there is more aggressive

         19  Sex Offender Monitoring Units and so on and so

         20  forth, the number should have gone down. Not up.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: More

         22  aggressive? There's one unit, and we're just

         23  proactively visiting these people.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: There are
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          2  hundreds and hundreds of people that are added to

          3  this list. There are 15,000 I believe Statewide,

          4  almost 4,000 reside in New York City. This number

          5  has increased dramatically over the years as a

          6  result of change in law. So, more and more people

          7  are registered under the SORO Act right now, and

          8  that will continue to increase as more clients fall

          9  under the category of mandating to register.

         10                 That necessarily in and of itself

         11  will not affect, it could affect our rape numbers

         12  going down. We're doing proactive visits, it's not

         13  necessarily going to affect if they've gone up.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, I guess

         15  again what the Councilman was asking, if the

         16  curriculum and the training and the Sex Offender

         17  Monitoring Unit being much more aggressive, would

         18  certainly be a great step, and nobody is saying it

         19  isn't. I mean, I think that is a great addition to

         20  the police force that, you know, the training is

         21  happening especially I think is probably the most

         22  important in that, and so on. But I guess the

         23  question really remains as to why the numbers went

         24  up this year, and I guess what it comes down to is,

         25  perhaps it just did. You know, there has to be
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          2  something the Police Department is looking at in

          3  particular, to try to combat. I mean, if you're

          4  changing your style and you're changing your

          5  training and you're changing the curriculum, that

          6  means that you found something you need to change it

          7  to, so the question is what would that be?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Well, first of

          9  all, when I say change, I mean I'd rather say we're

         10  enhancing it, we're looking at it, you know, we're

         11  closely analyzing it, we're seeing where we can make

         12  improvements clearly.

         13                 One thing that we haven't talked

         14  about, but I did talk about in the opening

         15  statement, is all the outreach that we're doing with

         16  community groups, and there are so many units in the

         17  Police Department that are reaching out to

         18  communities.

         19                 For example, probably one of the most

         20  well-known and most proactive group is Special

         21  Victims Liaison Unit, Sergeant Martinez, who is

         22  here, and they have seen a dramatic increase in the

         23  number of groups and institutions this year as

         24  compared to last year that they have gone out and

         25  proactively spoke to.
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          2                 So, they don't now wait for colleges

          3  or universities or different organizations to call

          4  them. They've been reaching out and setting up

          5  appointments and giving lectures and talking about

          6  personal safety, you know, tips, rape prevention,

          7  sexual assault, what you could expect, what you need

          8  to do, et cetera, and they are proactively doing

          9  that and there is an increase in the amount of

         10  outreach that we have done. We see it in our Crime

         11  Prevention officers assigned to precincts, Crime

         12  Prevention Division in general, we see it at the Sex

         13  Crimes Liaison Unit, the SOMO unit, in the ASPIRE

         14  program, in the housing developments we're doing the

         15  teen dating that I talked about. So, in all these

         16  different areas we have many, many units. Domestic

         17  violence, domestic violence officers get involved,

         18  they go for training and therefore they reach out to

         19  community and do training, an added training

         20  component when you know it's available. So, we see

         21  all this different outreach going on and continuing

         22  to increase.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me say that

         24  I have the utmost faith in Ray Kelly and the people

         25  he has put in charge of this unit, and what you just
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          2  testified to sounds like a great not just beginning,

          3  but continuation of your efforts in combatting in

          4  rape in the City.

          5                 However, as the Councilwoman says,

          6  this is our job, oversight, and we will be

          7  monitoring the statistics, and we assume based on

          8  these efforts the rates will go down, and if not we

          9  will be back here again and we will hopefully have

         10  more in-depth answers as to why this is happening

         11  because that's what the task force is, I'm sure,

         12  charged to come up with.

         13                 But, again, we have the utmost faith

         14  and we're sure that your efforts are going to be

         15  successful.

         16                 Health Committee Chair Christine

         17  Quinn has a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Your task

         19  force, Chief, that you mentioned that has the DAs

         20  office, et cetera, in it, and the trainings that go

         21  on as a part of that, what role does the Health and

         22  Hospitals Corporation play in that task force? Or in

         23  any of those trainings?

         24                 You know, one of the things we've

         25  been looking at and working on in research and stuff
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          2  in the Health Committee is, you know, are the City's

          3  emergency rooms, whether they be public hospitals or

          4  private hospitals, are they staffed correctly,

          5  trained correctly, rape crisis centers, same

          6  programs, et cetera, to deal with victims when they

          7  come in; one, obviously from a sensitivity

          8  perspective, and a care and treatment perspective,

          9  but also from an evidence collection perspective to

         10  make sure that the ERs aren't making mistakes which

         11  are then going to make your jobs harder, et cetera.

         12                 So, what role do they have, both as

         13  it relates to them being the public hospitals, but

         14  also HHC potentially then being a messenger for you

         15  all in the private hospitals who also service

         16  victims?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: They are not

         18  represented at the Committee, but there's different

         19  members at the Committee, and then we bring back

         20  information.

         21                 So, for example, Special Victims

         22  Liaison Unit is ran by Sergeant Martinez. She works

         23  in coordination with the rape advocacy groups and

         24  Health and Hospital Corporation in terms of the

         25  issues that you're addressing, and she conducts
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          2  lectures. We do training in coordination with rape

          3  advocacy groups, community groups, and that's how

          4  that information gets passed on, and she will come

          5  back to the group and report on information if she

          6  need to or address concerns that need to be

          7  addressed and vice versa.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can you just

          9  give me a sense of about, you know, how frequently

         10  that happens that Sergeant Martinez is interacting

         11  with HHC and other folk? And just while we're

         12  getting the other person, I just want to tell you

         13  that we -- I'm not sure that she's still in Special

         14  Victims, but Mary Pearsol, Detective Persol?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Yes. She's in

         16  Special Victims Liaison Unit.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: She's terrific.

         18  Always been a great asset. And she did a training

         19  for City Council staff on how to assist rape and

         20  sexual assault victims if they call our district

         21  offices, and she was very, very helpful.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Well, thank

         23  you. I'll pass that on to her also.

         24                 Sergeant Martinez.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,
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          2  Christine. In the interest of time, we'll just ask a

          3  few questions of the ME.

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I'm just going

          5  to let her answer --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Pardon?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: I want her to

          8  answer.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, there's more

         10  to the question?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I was just

         12  waiting for the person to get their papers out.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh. That's what

         14  happened. I'm speaking to six people at the same

         15  time. Sorry about that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Sorry. I will

         17  filling in with the commercial announcement.

         18                 SERGEANT MARTINEZ: Good afternoon.

         19                 Part of what the Special Victims

         20  Liaison Unit also does is, we're part of the New

         21  York City Alliance Forensic Health Care Committee.

         22  We attend regular advisory board committee meetings

         23  in which the Health and Hospitals are a member of,

         24  and we discuss criminal justice response to sexual

         25  assaults, and any other ways that we can address it
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          2  and improve.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You just need to

          4  identify yourself for the record.

          5                 SERGEANT MARTINEZ: Oh, I'm sorry.

          6  Sergeant Margaret Martinez, I'm the Commanding

          7  Officer for the Special Victims Liaison Unit.

          8                 So, that's where we primarily deal

          9  with the Health and Hospitals. We routinely provide

         10  trainings to the Sexual Assault Examiners, as well

         11  as the rape advocates on what the NYPD's process is

         12  in investigating sexual assaults.

         13                 This way we can work collaboratively.

         14  They know what we need to do, we know what they need

         15  to do, they can help us to support the victim to go

         16  forward and prosecute, and make a report. So, it's

         17  something that's ongoing. And we're also part of the

         18  New York City Alliance's Criminal Justice

         19  Collaborative Project.

         20                 Part of that project is identifying

         21  trends in patterns in sexual assault, and we're

         22  currently working on a conference in April to

         23  address this issue with the Mayor's Office, with the

         24  DA's Office and with the Health and Hospital

         25  Committees.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. Thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 SERGEANT MARTINEZ: You're welcome.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are you

          6  finished?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are you sure?

          9  Okay. Thank you.

         10                 Again, we'll try to quickly move on

         11  to some questions to the Medical Examiner and then

         12  move on to the District Attorneys.

         13                 I just want to ask quickly the

         14  process by which -- I understand it, but I'm sure

         15  some people don't -- the process by which DNA is

         16  taken in and analyzed and how you coordinate with

         17  the Police Department regarding testing and matches

         18  and things like that?

         19                 DR. SHALER: The evidence is brought

         20  to the Medical Examiner's Office by police officers.

         21  The evidence is then analyzed in the laboratory and

         22  currently our turn-around time for a sexual assault

         23  case is about 39 days, and that's from the time the

         24  evidence is brought until the report is actually

         25  prepared.
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          2                 The reports are sent to the District

          3  Attorneys' Offices and to the Special Victim Squads

          4  within the Police Department, and from there we also

          5  upload DNA profiles to -- we, first of all, examine

          6  locally, that is our own New York City DNA databank

          7  to see whether or not we can identify matches to

          8  suspects who have been arrested by the Police

          9  Department and for whom we have DNA profiles on

         10  file. Once we ascertain whether or not we have

         11  case-to-case matches or suspect matches locally then

         12  we upload that data to the State and Albany. Albany

         13  then checks statewide to see whether or not the DNA

         14  profiles have been seen within the State of New

         15  York, and once they make that determination they

         16  upload that data then to, nationally to the FBI, and

         17  then the FBI checks nationally to see whether or not

         18  those DNA profiles have been seen before.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That 39 days,

         20  first of all, let me commend you. I'm told that's

         21  the best in the entire country.

         22                 DR. SHALER: I believe it is for a

         23  large laboratory, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And also let me

         25  commend your work with regard to the World Trade
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          2  Center disaster. Obviously you did yeoman work then,

          3  and I'm told that did not greatly affect your

          4  turn-around time, regarding these criminal cases; is

          5  that correct?

          6                 DR. SHALER: Yes, sir. It's kind of

          7  amazing. We came into the World Trade Center attacks

          8  with a turn-around time of about 55 days, and came

          9  out of it with a turn-around of about 39 days. I'm

         10  at a loss to explain exactly how that happened, but

         11  at that time we had a number of people who were just

         12  coming out of training, as well, and we were able to

         13  put them into casework.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It also says a

         15  lot about human character and your office and how

         16  you can step up when needed.

         17                 We discussed briefly the backlog that

         18  existed long before you got in there, and through

         19  your testimony I believe you said it would be

         20  completely, each case that has been backlogged would

         21  be completed tested by 2003; is that correct?

         22                 DR. SHALER: I believe there are still

         23  4,000 cases that have to be shipped out. I believe

         24  Chief Jaffe testified to that, and I think this

         25  spring some time we will have sent out the last of
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          2  those rape kits.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And, again,

          4  funding for that was provided by the City; do you

          5  have adequate funding to complete that process?

          6                 DR. SHALER: I should say in comment

          7  that this was the first of this kind of project in

          8  the United States, and it's to the Police

          9  Department's credit for spearheading this effort,

         10  and it has started a revolution so-to-speak in

         11  analyzing backlog rape kits throughout the United

         12  States.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, you're

         14  right. I mean, on one hand it's outrageous that that

         15  backlog was ever allowed to exist, but on the other

         16  hand, you have taken on that challenge and it seems

         17  to me, and, again, we'll follow up on this, about

         18  those 4,000 that are still outstanding, but it seems

         19  to me like you're doing a great job on that.

         20                 The Forensic Biology Laboratory --

         21                 DR. SHALER: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please update us

         23  on the status of that.

         24                 DR. SHALER: Are you talking about the

         25  one that exists now or the one that might be under
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          2  construction?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, I was

          4  specifically talking about the one that might be

          5  under construction. I thought it was due to be

          6  constructed. So, please update us.

          7                 DR. SHALER: We have a hole in the

          8  ground, and I believe some steel has been ordered,

          9  and we're anticipating completion of this

         10  construction Year 2000, early 2006. There's some

         11  budgetary issues that we're concerned about, and

         12  we're in active discussions with the help of the

         13  NYPD with OMB.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, if you're

         15  concerned, we're concerned, about the budgetary

         16  aspect of this. Do you believe that this new

         17  laboratory is necessary?

         18                 DR. SHALER: Absolutely. We've been

         19  discussing sexual assault cases in the City of New

         20  York and whether or not there is a slight increase,

         21  which of course is intolerable.

         22                 One of the functions of this new

         23  building is to have what we call a low copy number

         24  laboratory, which will enable us to identify DNA

         25  from fingerprints left at a crime scene, and we
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          2  expect we'd be able to do all of the property crimes

          3  in the City of New York.

          4                 As we all know, people who commit

          5  property crimes go on to do other things.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You cannot do

          7  that with the present, at the present location?

          8                 DR. SHALER: Cannot.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Other than that,

         10  is your present location adequate for your needs?

         11                 DR. SHALER: No, it's not, sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, any

         13  assistance we can be in making sure that you

         14  complete this forensic biology laboratory, you let

         15  us know and we will do that.

         16                 At this point you said it's due to be

         17  completed when, if it's funded?

         18                 DR. SHALER: In the early part of

         19  2006.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And the outside

         21  contractors that you're using now to get rid of the

         22  backlog, would this affect that in any way?

         23                 DR. SHALER: No, those contracts will

         24  be completed before the laboratory is finished.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.
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          2                 I believe Christine Quinn has a

          3  question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes. I think

          5  that in the total number for the backlog kits was

          6  about 16,000; is that right?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: It's over

          8  17,000 now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And in the

         10  testimony or documentation there's talk of 12 or so

         11  thousand that have been sent out; I'm just wondering

         12  what's happening with the balance, the 4 or 5,000?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: The way it

         14  works, 13,000, approximately 13,000, over 13,000

         15  have been shipped out already. They go to three

         16  different labs, one's in Texas, one's in Maryland, I

         17  think one's in Virginia. That's how the contract

         18  reads from years ago.

         19                 There's approximately 4,000. They are

         20  being refrigerated at the Property Clerk, as they've

         21  been, and I think it's about 6 to 700 get shipped

         22  out every month, and it's coordinated through the

         23  Property Clerk's office and it's routinely done and

         24  they have a whole process for how they get farmed

         25  out to the labs, and then the information gets
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          2  forwarded to the ME's office related to if there's

          3  positive or negative in the semen.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So how many

          5  months do we anticipate it will take for the balance

          6  to be shipped out?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAFFE: Shipped out,

          8  probably we should see it completed by about May,

          9  June of 2003.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You know we have

         12  a resolution before us today also regarding the

         13  expansion or extension of the statute of limitations

         14  on rape cases in the Police Department. We thank you

         15  for coming down and supporting that.

         16                 Can you just update, or just inform

         17  the members of my Committee to the value of DNA and

         18  how it is used in identifying the perpetrators of

         19  these crimes, and if you do have an opinion on the

         20  lengthening of the statute of the limitations in

         21  these cases, we'd love to hear it.

         22                 DR. SHALER: I have a personal

         23  opinion, and it's certainly that that statute of

         24  limitations probably should be eliminated or

         25  certainly lengthened.
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          2                 The value of DNA is clearly not just

          3  in identifying people who have committed crimes, but

          4  also proving that people did not commit the crime,

          5  and throughout the few years that we've been doing

          6  DNA testing in the City, we've had a number of

          7  people released from jail who had been accused of

          8  committing sexual assaults, and I think that's a

          9  critical step as well. It's a cost-saving step for

         10  the criminal justice system, because you don't have

         11  to do something twice, and it's a critical element

         12  of law enforcement, in my opinion.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And when you get

         14  a match, what's the element of certainty there?

         15                 DR. SHALER: It's a match. It's an

         16  identification. It's 100 percent certain.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Unless you're OJ

         18  Simpson, I guess, but other than that you're 100

         19  percent certain.

         20                 We have a question from Council

         21  Member Yassky.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I remember

         23  there was an issue that in some places, but I don't

         24  know if this was ever true in New York City, that

         25  survivors who would come to an emergency room and
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          2  get a forensic exam had to pay for the forensic

          3  exam; is that true here? I mean, if you show up in

          4  an emergency room and you say I've been raped and

          5  somebody collects the evidence from the rape kit,

          6  are women ever charged for that?

          7                 DR. SHALER: No, I don't know.

          8                 (Unidentified speaker from the

          9  audience not using microphone.)

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: They are?

         11  What's the charge?

         12                 In other words, a rape kit isn't

         13  something that the Police Department stocks

         14  hospitals with? It's a set of evidence that you ask

         15  hospitals to supply, in other words?

         16                 We can wait until you testify, I'm

         17  sorry.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: In the interest

         19  of time, we will have follow-up questions, which we

         20  always do, in writing. But we thank you all for

         21  coming down here, especially supporting our

         22  initiatives today.

         23                 We would like to support you in any

         24  way possible, so if there's anything we can do to

         25  help with the rape initiatives, or with funding for
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          2  your new laboratory, you let us know, we'll pass

          3  resolutions, we'll back you any way we can.

          4                 Thank you for coming down, and we'll

          5  now have representatives from the Manhattan and the

          6  Queens District Attorneys' Office, and if you can

          7  step up to the table, please.

          8                 Okay, we're going to have David

          9  Yassky sing a song.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: No, actually

         12  vote on the anti-graffiti measures that we debated

         13  at the last hearing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I don't

         15  know that tune, but if you hum a few bars I can fake

         16  it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please reopen

         18  the vote, actually both for David Yassky and for

         19  Subcommittee Chair James Davis who has joined us.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Davis.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Pass.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I vote aye.

         24                 Mr. Chair, just thank you very much

         25  for your indulgence. I was next door at a different
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          2  hearing, I appreciate your holding the record open.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Davis.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Permission to

          6  explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: As a retired

          9  police officer, when it comes to these measures,

         10  these are measures that are heading in the right

         11  direction. A person should not be selling graffiti

         12  tools to young people. I have a graffiti problem in

         13  my district, and I hope this will send a clear

         14  message that we cannot sit back on idle hands and do

         15  nothing, so I whole-heartedly vote aye on these

         16  measures.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Davis.

         19                 Let me thank all of the members of

         20  this Committee for unanimous vote regarding the

         21  anti-graffiti members and thank Gale Brewer who is

         22  not here but who was a prime sponsor of the

         23  anti-etching bill, with the sale of the etching

         24  acid, which we also passed today.

         25                 We're joined by Eric Rosenbaum, from
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          2  the Queens County District Attorney's Office; and

          3  Lisa Friel, from the New York County District

          4  Attorney's Office.

          5                 Lisa and I actually worked together

          6  not too long ago in Bureau 70 of the Manhattan

          7  District Attorney's Office. She taught me a lot. So,

          8  it's very nice to have you both here with us, but

          9  especially you, Lisa, it's good to see you again.

         10  Whatever order you determine, please go ahead.

         11                 MS. FRIEL: My name is Lisa Friel, as

         12  Mr. Vallone just said. I'm the Chief of the Sex

         13  Crimes Unit in the Manhattan District Attorney's

         14  Office. I'm here to speak on behalf of my office, as

         15  well as the Bronx, Richmond County and Queens County

         16  DAs offices, all of whom you invited to speak here

         17  today.

         18                 Sitting next to me on my right is

         19  Eric Rosenbaum from the Queens District Attorney's

         20  Office Special Victims Bureau. He is here to assist

         21  me in answering any questions you may have at the

         22  completion of these prepared remarks.

         23                 I want to begin by thanking you for

         24  inviting the District Attorneys to speak on behalf

         25  of this resolution. It is one that we support

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  whole-heartedly.

          3                 Indeed, the District Attorney's

          4  Association of the State of New York supports the

          5  change to our statute of limitations laws.

          6                 As you know, the statute of

          7  limitations for felony sexual assault is five years.

          8  In some cases the prosecutor may receive an

          9  extension to ten years from the court, if she can

         10  demonstrate that the whereabouts of the perpetrator

         11  were unknown during the period of the statute of

         12  limitations, and the due diligence was exercised in

         13  trying to find the defendants.

         14                 The decision to grant a five-year

         15  extension is, of course, in the court's discretion.

         16  It is by no means automatic.

         17                 In the last legislative session a

         18  number of bills were introduced in the State

         19  Legislature, that would increase or eliminate the

         20  statute of limitations for certain violent crimes,

         21  or in the case of the Governor's program bill for

         22  all B violent felonies.

         23                 We support the elimination of the

         24  statute of limitations for B violent felonies,

         25  particularly for sexual offenses.
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          2                 If an individual has committed a

          3  serious violent crime and can be positively

          4  identified by DNA evidence, he should not escape

          5  prosecution because he was lucky enough to go

          6  undetected for a certain period of time.

          7                 Two factors have combined in recent

          8  years to cause prosecutors, legislators and citizens

          9  to question the propriety of the statute of

         10  limitations for violent crimes involving sexual

         11  assault.

         12                 Primarily advances in DNA technology

         13  have allowed law enforcement to identify criminals

         14  without question based on semen, blood or even hairs

         15  left at the scene of a crime, something that could

         16  not be done ten years ago.

         17                 As I am sure many, if not all of you,

         18  are aware every individual has unique DNA that

         19  resides in each of the cells of his body. Scientists

         20  are able to examine the DNA and create a profile

         21  that describes the composition of that person's DNA.

         22  Modern tests can even create a profile from DNA that

         23  is decades old. When DNA is collected at a crime

         24  scene and analyzed, the profiles that are generated

         25  can be matched to evidence from other crimes, or to
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          2  suspects who have given DNA samples, either as part

          3  of an investigation, or as required after certain

          4  convictions.

          5                 In the past, it was reasonable to

          6  prohibit the prosecution of a 15-year-old rape

          7  because the case would have been based on uncertain

          8  forensic testing and fading witness memories.

          9                 Now the perpetrators can be

         10  identified with certainty, with unassailable

         11  scientific evidence for decades following a crime.

         12  There is no reason to allow these violent offenders

         13  to escape punishment and these most recidivistic

         14  criminals to reoffend again and again, often with

         15  increasing violence.

         16                 The second factor that causes us to

         17  question the statute of limitations is the

         18  increasing volume of DNA being collected and tested,

         19  and as a result, the number of crimes that can now

         20  be solved.

         21                 In 1996, the State began collecting

         22  DNA from offenders convicted of certain offenses,

         23  and placing this information in a database, thus

         24  allowing law enforcement to identify convicted

         25  criminals associated with previously unsolved
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          2  crimes.

          3                 So far the state has matched over 600

          4  crimes to convicted offenders and its databank. As

          5  new convicted offenders are tested, more and more

          6  are being linked to older, previously unsolved

          7  crimes.

          8                 DNA has also borne fruit just at the

          9  local level. More and more crimes are solved through

         10  DNA, as crime scene profiles are linked.

         11                 At times investigators have been

         12  surprised by DNA evidence which may link two crimes

         13  that would have never otherwise been associated.

         14                 As the number of samples grow, the

         15  number of crimes identified will increase, and a

         16  growing number that fall outside the statute of

         17  limitations will go unpunished.

         18                 Further compounding the problem, the

         19  Police Department has thousands of rape kits from a

         20  period when DNA profiling was not available. Over

         21  two years ago, the Police Department, in conjunction

         22  with the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner for

         23  the City of New York began a backlog project that

         24  consisted of contracting three outside labs to test

         25  all these old, untested rape kits.
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          2                 These labs were able to generate DNA

          3  profiles from approximately 40 percent of these old

          4  kits.

          5                 These profiles were then sent back to

          6  the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner from the

          7  private labs and loaded into the local DNA database,

          8  resulting in a number of local case-to-case matches.

          9  Once a month these profiles are uploaded to the

         10  state, and soon thereafter to the national database,

         11  resulting in additional case-to-case matches with

         12  other unsolved sexual assault outside the City of

         13  New York.

         14                 And even more importantly, these

         15  profiles are compared to the convicted offender

         16  database resulting in hits with convicted offenders,

         17  thus solving these old cases.

         18                 When the project began, the hits we

         19  received came in very slowly. As more convicted

         20  offender profiles were put in the convicted offender

         21  databank, and as more DNA profiles from old kits

         22  came back from the outside of the lab, we saw an

         23  increasing amount of hits.

         24                 What started as a couple of hit

         25  letters per month, each detailing a single match,
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          2  has become multiple hit letters per week, detailing

          3  as many as 30 case-to-case and case-to-offender

          4  matches in a single letter.

          5                 It is important to understand what is

          6  involved once a District Attorney's Office receives

          7  a cold hit notification. That District Attorney's

          8  Office now has to scramble to locate the old Police

          9  Department file from a case that can be anywhere

         10  from five to ten years old.

         11                 From the police reports we then get

         12  information about the victim. Using the five- to

         13  ten-year-old information, we try to locate the

         14  victim. If the victim can be located, she then must

         15  come to the District Attorney's Office to be

         16  interviewed and then must testify before the grand

         17  jury. All of this takes time, and as we are doing

         18  these things, the statute of limitations is

         19  continually running, and on some of these cases it

         20  will most certainly run out.

         21                 In Manhattan we recently indicted a

         22  defendant who was identified through the backlog

         23  project as the perpetrator of a rape homicide and

         24  another rape. He beat the ten-year cutoff by less

         25  than 90 days.
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          2                 In Queens, the pattern of

          3  approximately three dozen rapes went unsolved for

          4  years. Using modern DNA technology to reanalyze the

          5  old rape kits and compare them to the DNA databank,

          6  the perpetrator was finally identified. He, as a

          7  convicted child sex offender.

          8                 Unfortunately, he can only be

          9  prosecuted for two of these approximately 36

         10  gunpoint sexual attacks, even though DNA tests show

         11  he committed more, because only two are within the

         12  statute of limitations, even with a Court-granted

         13  extension for ten years.

         14                 As more profiles from the 1993 kits

         15  come back, and as the Year 2003 rapidly approaches,

         16  it is clear that more and more solved sexual assault

         17  cases are going to go unprosecuted because of New

         18  York State antiquated statute of limitations laws.

         19                 Because so many sex offenders are

         20  recidivists, you can be assured that some of these

         21  unprosecutable sex offenders will go on to rape and

         22  sodomize again. This is an unacceptable situation.

         23                 Sexual assault is a devastating

         24  crime. It leaves its victims emotionally scarred for

         25  life. We simply cannot afford as a society to allow
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          2  a known rapist, one who has been identified

          3  conclusively through DNA evidence to remain on the

          4  street free to rape again because of laws that were

          5  written long before DNA technology existed.

          6                 Thus, we whole-heartedly support the

          7  City Council's resolution to change these antiquated

          8  laws.

          9                 In addition, we urge the City Council

         10  to support legislation to obtain DNA profiles from a

         11  greater list of convicted offenders. The more

         12  convicted offenders whose profiles are placed in the

         13  State databank, the more sexual assaults that will

         14  be solved.

         15                 In the experience of the District

         16  Attorneys' offices, many rapists are arrested whose

         17  only prior crime is a misdemeanor conviction. Had

         18  their DNA profiles been obtained upon their

         19  conviction for this misdemeanor offense, the cases

         20  would have been solved in no time, thus taking a

         21  dangerous criminal off the streets with far less law

         22  enforcement investigative time than presently goes

         23  into solving these cases.

         24                 In fact, in the cases of some

         25  multiple rapists, assaults could have been prevented
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          2  if DNA had been taken for a previous misdemeanor

          3  offense.

          4                 Therefore, we urge you to support

          5  legislation that increases the scope of the

          6  convicted offender databank to include additional

          7  crime.

          8                 Before I close my remarks here today,

          9  I would like to point out a perhaps not so obvious

         10  problem that has arisen with increasing number of

         11  matches now being made and that is one of resources.

         12                 As more cases are matched, more cases

         13  are obviously handed to the various District

         14  Attorneys' Offices for prosecution. As older cases

         15  are identified, even those within the five-year

         16  statute of limitations, prosecution becomes even

         17  more time consuming.

         18                 Witnesses must be located, evidence

         19  must be reassembled, and experienced prosecutors

         20  must devote a significant amount of time to

         21  assembling the case and presenting it to the jury.

         22  Because turnover at all our offices is high, we are

         23  constantly training new assistants in the difficult

         24  topic of DNA science.

         25                 In passing this resolution, we urge
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          2  the Council to also consider that the resources of

          3  the DAs will be stretched even further, and hope

          4  that you will allocate funding for the purpose of

          5  prosecuting these terribly important cases.

          6                 I would like to thank the Committee

          7  on behalf of myself, my office and the other

          8  District Attorneys' offices in the City. We

          9  appreciate the opportunity to address this

         10  Committee. We would now be happy to answer any

         11  questions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Ms.

         13  Friel, for your eloquent and persuasive case for not

         14  just extending the statute of limitations, but

         15  completely eliminating the statute of limitations

         16  such as it is for murder cases. And I agree with

         17  you, I see no reason why that should not be, and why

         18  these antiquated laws should not be changed.

         19                 Your testimony is very informative

         20  and answered most of my questions, and I'm going to

         21  turn it over now to Council Member Yassky.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I just have a

         23  couple of questions. I apologize for dragging you

         24  into the dialogue before, before your time.

         25                 What's the clearance rate -- and I
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          2  don't know, maybe this was better for the PD -- but

          3  what's the clearance rate for reported rapes in New

          4  York City, do you know?

          5                 MS. FRIEL: I can't answer that

          6  question. The PD would have to answer that question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Fair enough.

          8  And I'm just curious, in the sexual assaults

          9  prosecuted in your office, what percent are

         10  acquaintance rapes, as opposed to stranger rapes, if

         11  those are categories you recognize?

         12                 MS. FRIEL: Yes. The exact same

         13  numbers as the PD quoted. Approximately 80 percent

         14  of the sexual assaults that we handle are

         15  acquaintance sexual assaults, and that's putting

         16  together their categories of acquaintance and

         17  domestic sexual assault.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

         19                 MS. FRIEL: And somewhere around 20

         20  percent are stranger. Those, by the way, are

         21  national statistics, as well as State and City, and

         22  they've held constant for the 20 years I've been

         23  doing this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: That's

         25  actually amazing that they're constant. Not to
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          2  belabor the point, but you would think that

          3  reporting rates for acquaintance rapes would have

          4  gone up, thereby increasing the percentage that

          5  those make up of the total share, of the total

          6  number, but you're saying not?

          7                 MS. FRIEL: I believe they've gone up

          8  and I believe it's probably changed it within

          9  certain percentage points, but the real reality is

         10  that most sexual assaults in this country is

         11  perpetrated by someone the victim knows.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. And then

         13  just the question I was asking before, if somebody

         14  shows up at a hospital and says I've been raped,

         15  would that woman be charged for the collection of

         16  evidence? And does that ever discourage women from

         17  having the forensic exam that would be necessary to

         18  obtain the evidence that you ultimately need?

         19                 MS. FRIEL: I think what happens is

         20  similar to what happens in any emergency situation.

         21  You go to the hospital and you're treated at the

         22  hospital and if you have insurance, they ask for

         23  your insurance information and they bill your

         24  insurance company. If you have no insurance then

         25  there's a bill generated.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 Now, when you're the victim of a

          3  crime you can apply to the Crime Victims

          4  Compensation Board for reimbursement for your

          5  medical treatment at the hospital. So, I would say

          6  it doesn't probably discourage a lot of victims from

          7  going. On the other hand, think of the ones who it

          8  went to their insurance company, and then they get

          9  it back and now they have a certain amount that is

         10  still unpaid and they have to apply to the Crime

         11  Victims Board. It's a very time-consuming process, I

         12  understand, from speaking to victims. It would

         13  certainly be a better situation if it was covered

         14  from the get-go, as soon as they got to the

         15  hospital.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I mean, have

         17  you ever had somebody who, a victim who winds up

         18  being interviewed by your office and turns out they

         19  did not, or they missed an opportunity, or we missed

         20  an opportunity to get evidence that would be helpful

         21  because they were not able to pay for an exam? Or

         22  that hasn't happened?

         23                 MS. FRIEL: I haven't had a victim

         24  tell me that. Where we really miss the opportunity

         25  sometimes to collect medical evidence is the fact
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          2  that sexual assault is often not reported

          3  immediately, for a whole myriad of understandable

          4  reasons, and by the time a victim has the nerve to

          5  come forward and report it, a lot of times too much

          6  time has gone by to collect useful medical evidence.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         10  Katz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Hi.

         12                 MS. FRIEL: Hi.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Two out of the

         14  36, I guess sexual assaults, in one of your cases

         15  were able to be prosecuted; why were those two not

         16  beyond the statute of limitations?

         17                 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's actually a

         18  Queens case. I can answer that for you.

         19                 There wasn't DNA conclusively linking

         20  the defendant in this case, it's currently pending

         21  through all 36 cases, but the MO is so distinct that

         22  we strongly believed to have committed this pattern

         23  in both Queens and Nassau. There was DNA on several

         24  cases in Queens. Only two of them, though, come

         25  within the maximum period of ten years that they can
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          2  be prosecuted. There's a five-year window for

          3  felonies.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right, and then

          5  it was extended.

          6                 MR. ROSENBAUM: Exactly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It wasn't

          8  because the statute of limitations was totaled at

          9  all. It wasn't an underaged child, it wasn't --

         10                 MR. ROSENBAUM: No, these were young

         11  women dragged at gunpoint off the street.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's what I

         13  was wondering.

         14                 MR. ROSENBAUM: It's very frustrating

         15  when you have the hits and there's these terrible

         16  crimes, and we've just lost them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I was the author

         18  of the Kendall law in the State Assembly when I was

         19  an Assemblywoman, and it kept coming up time and

         20  time again, which is why I was asking the question,

         21  because I was wondering whether it was an under-aged

         22  victim.

         23                 How is that law working? A lot of

         24  loopholes; it's all right?

         25                 MR. ROSENBAUM: Because of the timing
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          2  of it, it's just beginning to become an effective

          3  tool, I believe.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good. All right.

          5                 Quickly, the acquaintance rape; the

          6  percentage I know is about, I guess 66 percent of

          7  the rapes are acquaintance rapes; is that basically

          8   --

          9                 MS. FRIEL: Well, you have to

         10  remember, the Police Department delineates between

         11  acquaintance, domestic and then stranger. As far as

         12  the DA's office, when we refer to it, any case where

         13  someone knows each other is an acquaintance sexual

         14  assault.

         15                 If you put the Police Department's

         16  numbers for acquaintance and domestic together, you

         17  get that number, I think it came to 83 percent, I

         18  think they said 17 percent was strangers.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: How many of

         20  those were convicted of the rape, as opposed to plea

         21  bargain -- I guess how many plea bargained, I guess,

         22  and how many were convicted of the rape?

         23                 MS. FRIEL: I can't give you exact

         24  numbers. You have to remember, the Police Department

         25  statistics are based on incidents reported, not on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  arrests and therefore not on prosecutions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          4                 MS. FRIEL: I can tell you, someone

          5  asked the question earlier about conviction rates,

          6  and this is rough, this is not off of looking at

          7  numbers, but this is based on the 20 years I've been

          8  doing this, that our office's conviction rate on

          9  felonies is usually somewhere in the high seventies.

         10  On stranger sexual --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you say that

         12  again?

         13                 MS. FRIEL: Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I apologize.

         15                 MS. FRIEL: The Manhattan DA's Office

         16  conviction rate on felonies is usually in the high

         17  seventies.

         18                 Stranger sexual assaults, I would say

         19  we have a 90 plus conviction rate. Between DNA and

         20  how long these people spend together, and your much

         21  better ability to make an identification, it

         22  increases our conviction rate on those kinds of

         23  sexual assaults.

         24                 On our acquaintance sexual assaults,

         25  our conviction rate is not as good as the office's
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          2  overall conviction rate on felonies. It is certainly

          3  getting better over the years. I would say, and it's

          4  again rough, that it's probably somewhere in the 60

          5  something percent rate. And it is definitely getting

          6  better, and one of the reasons it's getting better

          7  is that over the years I've been doing this, we are

          8  working so much better with the Police Department.

          9  We are doing far more pre-arrest investigations than

         10  we did when I started in this unit in 1986, which

         11  means the case happens and they call us right away

         12  instead of after the arrest, and that's what's

         13  helping us make better cases and increasing the

         14  conviction rate.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before you

         16  continue, I just want to note that we've been joined

         17  by Council Member Gale Brewer, who as I mentioned

         18  before, is the prime sponsor of the bill which was

         19  just passed unanimously out of this Committee, which

         20  would make illegal the sale of etching acid to

         21  minors.

         22                 Gale, thank you for coming by today

         23  and joining us. I assume Melinda Katz is finished

         24  questioning?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

          3                 Did you have a question, Gale?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just wanted

          5  to say thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate your

          6  support of this bill, and thanks very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You said the

          8  matches from the kits, the backlog of kits were at

          9  40 percent; why is that?

         10                 MS. FRIEL: What I said is that of all

         11  of the kits that have gone out to the lab, they've

         12  been able to generate profiles on 40 percent of the

         13  kits. That can be because in a lot of crimes there

         14  is no semen left in a rape, the crime is not defined

         15  by ejaculation but by penetration. It can also be

         16  that ten years ago, when these kits were first being

         17  done, we didn't have as many training programs as we

         18  have for medical personnel to increase their ability

         19  to get good evidence when they do the rape kit. So,

         20  there are any number of reasons we think that we

         21  don't get 100 percent profile from these kits.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Does it have

         23  anything to do with the amount of time that elapsed

         24  before the kit was finally tested?

         25                 MS. FRIEL: I'm sure that figures into
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          2  it too, but I understand from the Medical Examiner's

          3  office, and you can ask them, that their statistics

          4  are only a little better for their testing of the

          5  recent kits that come right to them, that they are

          6  still a little under 50 percent for being able to

          7  get DNA profiles.

          8                 MS. ROSENBAUM: One of the great

          9  advances in the technology from the OCME's office,

         10  as I understand it, too, is they're able to develop

         11  profiles from extremely small samples, as compared

         12  to what was needed ten years ago. Now we're getting

         13  extremely tiny samples that are measurable, and

         14  that's going to be a very invaluable tool.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mentioned

         16  possibly introducing legislation regarding getting

         17  profiles from a greater list of convicted offenders.

         18  That's something which I completely support and I'm

         19  already having our Counsel, Ted Baecher, start

         20  working on that.

         21                 When you say greater list of

         22  convicted offenders, what would you recommend -- who

         23  would you recommend be included in that list?

         24                 MS. FRIEL: Everyone convicted of a

         25  crime, including every convicted of a misdemeanor.
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          2                 It's been my experience, and in

          3  Manhattan I see all the Manhattan cases that come

          4  into the Sex Crimes Unit, and I can't tell you how

          5  many cases we've had where someone has been arrested

          6  for a rape, and the only prior crime they had on

          7  their criminal record is a misdemeanor conviction.

          8  And I know from talking to my colleagues in the

          9  other offices, that that's true of their offices as

         10  well.

         11                 And there is, you should know, Mr.

         12  Vallone, legislation has been introduced to just

         13  this end, and it has not passed as yet.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you have

         15  information as to why that happened? I was told it

         16  was because it included violations; do you know if

         17  that's a fact?

         18                 MS. FRIEL: I don't know.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry. That

         20  is my understanding. I could be wrong but that is my

         21  understanding, is that it didn't move because there

         22  was some sense in that it went beyond misdemeanors,

         23  perhaps, not necessarily -- overreached, and went

         24  beyond the intent of the authors. Not deliberately,

         25  though.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Ms.

          3  Quinn. I will take a look into that, though, and

          4  redraft a resolution which will support passing that

          5  legislation in Albany, because I fully agree with

          6  that.

          7                 Are there any further questions?

          8                 Seeing that there are none, we thank

          9  you for coming down --

         10                 MS. FRIEL: You're welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:-- And supporting

         12  our initiative. As usually, it was very informative.

         13  Good to see you again, Ms. Friel.

         14                 MS. FRIEL: You, too, Mr. Vallone.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         16                 This meeting of the Public Safety

         17  Committee is now closed. Thank you.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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